ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 22, 2007
3:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator CGene Therriaul t

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 48

"An Act anmending Rule 62, Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure, to
l[imt the anmpunt of the bond required to stay execution of a
judgnment in a civil litigation during an appeal or review and
anendi ng Rul es 204 and 205, Al aska Rul es of Appellate Procedure,
to limt the anmount of the bond required to stay execution of a
judgnment in a civil litigation during an appeal ."

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 3
Urging the governor and the attorney general to expedite the
resolution in the courts of the appeal from the decision by the
commi ssi oner of natural resources to deny the proposed plans for
devel opnment of the Point Thonmson Unit and to term nate the Point
Thomson Unit.

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO. 78
"An Act relating to the installation of wndow tinting in
aut onobi | es. "

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SCR 3

SHORT TITLE: PO NT THOVBON UNI T APPEAL
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 22, 2007



02/ 19/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 07 (S) JUD
03/ 22/ 07 (S) JUD AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 78
SHORT TI TLE: MOTOR VEHI CLE W NDOW TI NTI NG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FRENCH

02/ 09/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 09/ 07 (S) TRA, JUD

03/ 06/ 07 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 06/ 07 (S) Moved SB 78 Qut of Conmittee
03/ 06/ 07 (S) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 07/ 07 (S) TRA RPT 1DP 3NR

03/ 07/ 07 (S) DP:  KOOKESH

03/ 07/ 07 (S) NR. W ELECHOWSKI , W LKEN, COWDERY
03/ 14/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 14/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 14/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 22/ 07 (S) JUD AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

W | i am Boswood

Auto Trim Design

Fai r banks, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 78

Andrew Fel t

Auto Trim Design

Fai r banks, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 78

Anne Johnson, Assistant Attorney General

Cvil Division

Ol, Gas & Mning Section

Departnent of Law

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on a proposed anendnent to SCR 3

Kevi n Banks, Acting Director
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:32:44 PM Present at the call to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 22, 2007



order were Senator Welechowski, Senat or MecGui r e, Senat or
Huggi ns, Senator Therriault, and Chair French.

SB  78- MOTOR VEH CLE W NDOW TI NTI NG

3:33:24 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 78. He recapped
that during the first hearing sonme commercial installers

expressed concern that adding the lightest available tint to
factory glass exceeds the limt under the current law If that
is true then the standards should be changed, but that is the
subj ect of another bill, he said. He noted that according to a
table in the packets, Alaska has the sane standard as
California, New York, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island and several
other jurisdictions. He said he would hazard a guess that there
is window film used in at |east sonme of those states that
doesn’t break the | aw

He asked Senator Wel echowski if he had a conceptual amendnent
to address the concern about the level of penalty for the
of fense of installing w ndow tinting.

3:35:20 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI notioned to change the penalty for
installing wndow tinting from a crimnal penalty to a civil
penal ty.

CHAIR FRENCH explained that Title 28 is a catchall statute that
sets out penalties for violations. Mst of the violations are
m sdenmeanors puni shable by a year in jail and up to a $10, 000
fine, but many of the Title 28 provisions are infractions. He
suggested that AS 28.35.235 is a simlar statute and it mght be
a starting point for the conceptual anmendnent. In part it says:

Sec. 28. 35. 235.

(c) A person who violates this section is guilty
of an infraction. Upon conviction, the court shall
i mpose a fine of not less than $125, or, if the person
has been previously convicted under this section, the
court shall inpose a fine of not |ess than $250.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated a preference to have the conceptua
anmendnent to follow that style.

3:37: 36 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked if he is confortable with the anount of the
penal ty.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 22, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said his thought is to set the penalty at a
rate simlar to the penalty for driving with tinted w ndows.

CHAI R FRENCH asked Lt. Dial what the penalty is for driving with
w ndows tinted above the all owabl e maxi mum

LT. RODNEY Dial, Alaska State Trooper, said it is a correctable
of fense, but a $150 fine can be assessed. The Muinicipality of
Anchor age does assess a fine.

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI restated his intention is to have the
penalty the sanme as the penalty for driving with unlawfully
tinted w ndows.

CHAIR FRENCH clarified the noti on woul d read:

A person who violates this section is guilty of an
infraction. Upon conviction, the court shall inpose a
fine of not |less than $150, or, if the person has been
previously convicted under this section, the court
shal |l inpose a fine of not |ess than $300.

3:38: 45 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT noted the change from a m sdeneanor to an
infraction and asked if it’s for the driver or the installer.

CHAIR FRENCH said the infraction is for the installer. Wen
there isn't an associated jail tinme it’s sonetines called a
speci al -class m sdeneanor, but the nanme doesn’'t matter. The
issue is to give the police a tool to try to elimnate the very
dark tinting that nmay be installed at sone shops. He said he
isnt sure that it’s happening in the shops that have been
testifying.

SENATOR MGU RE comented, “Despite their statenent on the
record that it was.”

CHAIR FRENCH said he believes there are three categories of
tinting. A denonstration would show the very dark tint, then the
tint that is probably just slightly out of conformity with the
70 percent standard, and then factory gl ass.

3:40: 08 PM

CHAIR FRENCH, hearing and seeing no further discussion or
obj ection, announced that Anendnment 1 is adopted.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 22, 2007



SENATOR McGUIRE referenced a letter she received from Auto Trim
Design asking the commttee to consider changing the standard
from 30 percent to 35 percent. Acknow edging that she isn't an
expert in this area, she asked what the distinction is.

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Boswod or M. Felt to give their
per specti ve.

3:41:18 PM

WLLI AM BOSWOOD, Auto Trim Design, Fairbanks, explained that
there is no 30 percent; what is allowed is 70 percent. That
means 70 percent light transm ssion on front w ndows and so 30
percent of the light is blocked. That anmount of tint isn't
visible; it only provides UV protection. He continued to say:

35 percent tint is twice as dark as 70 percent. It
cuts in half the amount of light that 70 percent does.
35 percent tint is considered a nediumtint nationw de
in the industry and it is quite visible. You can see
inside the vehicle with 35 percent tint on the front
doors.

ANDREW FELT said the specific request is to allow tinting that
isinline with a myjority of other states. That is tinting down
to at least a 35 percent light transmssion level on front
wi ndows and down to 20 percent on rear W ndows.

3:44: 39 PM

SENATOR MGUIRE said it’s a good point; the basis of this lawis
a regulation and it’s been a law since 1994. She suggested
installers negotiate with the regulation nakers separate and
distinct fromthis bill.

SENATOR THERRI AULT restated M. Boswood’s suggestion to allow 35
percent light transmttance and said he would |like to propose an
anendnent on behal f of the good citizens of Fairbanks.

CHAI R FRENCH asked himto conti nue.

SENATOR THERRI AULT notioned to conceptually change |anguage in
paragraph (2) on line 8 to say it is a violation if tinting
doesn't allow at |east 35 percent visible light transmttance.
The | evel would not be established by regulation.

3:47:26 PM

CHAI R FRENCH objected explaining that the regulations are very
conplex and he didn't want to amend them casually. He asked for
ot her comments.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 22, 2007



SENATOR HUGGE NS expressed disconfort because the bill holds
installers liable, but it offers themnno help if the request is
in fact reasonabl e.

CHAI R FRENCH said he understands the concern but he isn't sure
this is the tine and place to fix it. Nonetheless, he would hold
the bill over so the commttee could resolve the question of
whet her to nmake adjustnents to tinting |evels or not.

SENATOR HUGA NS agreed it is a separate question, but if the
standard i s unreasonabl e he woul d reconmend hol ding bill.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he understands the argunent that the
various regulations are conplex so he was wthdrawing his

conceptual anendnent. “If there’'s any time to consider if in
fact we can accommpdate their request, 1'd rather do it that
way. ”

3:50: 52 PM

CHAI R FRENCH summari zed Anmendnent 1 has been adopted, Amendnent
2 has been withdrawn, and the commttee would take the bill up

again when its confort level is up where it bel ongs.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if it would be possible to get a
denonstration and M. Boswood agreed to provi de sanpl es.

SENATOR McQUI RE stated objection to very black tinting, but said
she is interested in know ng what percentage does allow soneone
to see inside a vehicle.

CHAI R FRENCH asked Lt. Dial to coment.

LT DIAL said he has checked a nunber of factory cars and nost
are acceptable according to current regulations, but if the
standards are changed, some cars wll be in violation upon
| eaving the state. He suggested that state standards should be
post ed.

SENATOR McGUIRE stated an interest in seeing what a 50 percent
standard | ooks |ike conpared to a 70 percent standard.

CHAI R FRENCH suggested she acconpany Senator Therriault when he
visits the tint shop

CHAIR FRENCH held SB 78 in commttee.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 22, 2007



SCR_3- PO NT_ THOVSON UNI T APPEAL

3:58: 08 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced t he consi derati on of SCR 3.

SENATOR THERRI AULT, Sponsor of SCR 3, said he introduced the
resolution after it became apparent that the Pt. Thonson
legislation he initially introduced could be a detrinment to the
state’s cause. SCR 3 resolves that the legislature is
encouraging the governor and the attorney general to allocate
adequate resources and to expedite the court’s consideration of
the appeal. He enphasized that the resolution isn’t encouraging
a court fight. In fact, he said, to expedite could nean getting
to a settlenent; he didn't believe that the adm nistration had
necessarily ruled that out.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said when he reviewed the resolution wth
Kevin Banks and the Departnment of Law he was asked to insert an
addi tional *“whereas” phrase that provides an update of the
action state agencies have taken. He distributed the proposed
anmendnent .

In conclusion he said there is potential benefit in having the
| egi slature support the admnistration’s efforts through the
fast track supplemental for the oil and gas issues that were
passed, but there’'s also benefit in making a policy statenent in
support of the steps the administration has taken to get the Pt
Thonmson | ease unit into production.

4:02:13 PM

ANNE JOHNSQN, Assistant Attorney General, CGvil Dvision, Ql,
Gas & Mning Section, Departnment of Law, explained that the
proposed anmendnent is a reference to three other proceedings
that are currently in progress. Two proceedings are in superior
court and they evolved from the unit termnations. One
proceeding 1is an agency appeal on the individual |ease
term nati ons.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if the admnistrative appeals filed by
Exxonhbbi | Cor por ati on, BP  Expl orati on, Chevron US A,
ConocoPhil l'ips Al aska, I nc., and Devon Energy Production
Conmpany, L.P. that are listed in the proposed amendnent show up
t oget her or one at a tine.

M5. JOHNSON said all the entities appeal ed individually, but the

sanme issues are at stake so it’s possible that a single decision
will cone out.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 22, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if the governor and the attorney
general are allocating adequate resources for this matter.

MS. JOHNSON deferred to M. Banks.

4:04: 29 PM

KEVI N BANKS, Acting Director, Division of Ol & Gas, Departnent
of Natural Resources, said the financial support is under the
fast track supplemental and the Departnment of Law has retained
out si de counsel to work on the case.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if the governor and the attorney
general are taking all steps necessary to expedite the court’s
consi deration of the appeal.

MR. BANKS said yes; no stone will go unturned in the effort to
achieve what is in the best interest of the state.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI comrented, “It appears that we' re already
doing everything that we’'re asking to be done in this
resol ution.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT responded that although he doesn't disagree,
he believes there is potential benefit in having the legislative
branch on record as fully supporting the admnistration s
efforts. He asked M. Johnson or M. Banks if they see any
potential downside to the legislature going on record as
descri bed.

M5. JOHNSON said she could not see a downside. She continued to
say, “I would like to say the Departnment of Law appreciates the
Senate’s concurrent resolution on Pt. Thomson and the
proceedings that are related to it. We appreciate the
| egislature’s funding of the proceedings; the |aw departnent
will continue to nove ahead as expeditiously as possible to
hopefully attain a successful resol ution.

4.:07:23 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said he wote down the word “resolution” when
Senator Therriault said this could lead to a settlenment or it
could lead to a court decision, but the idea is to get this
wrapped up as fairly and as quickly as possible wthout giving
away the farm in exchange for speed. Wth that in mnd he
suggested the commttee consider a bit of wordsmthing on page
3, lines 19 and 20, to capture that idea. If the legislature is
truly telling the admnistration to expedite the court’s

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 22, 2007



consideration that’s one thing, but if it is telling it to
expedite the process to resolve the ownership of the Pt. Thonmson
| eases that is a slightly different and broader charge than he

bel i eves Senator Therriault is intending. | tend to support him
he said, because at sonme point there may be a decision that it’'s
time to wap it up because it’s not possible to build and fill a

gas line without Pt. Thonmson gas.

SENATOR THERRI AULT suggested the commttee insert sonething
simlar to “or facilitate the settlenent” after the appeal
ref erence.

CHAI R FRENCH asked Ms. Johnson to comment.

M5. JOHNSON suggested inserting, “or facilitate a successful
resolution to the Pt Thonpson unit and | ease di spute”.

CHAIR FRENCH, with stated agreenment from the sponsor, held SCR 3
in commttee to allowtinme to prepare a conmittee substitute.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 4:09:46 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 22, 2007



